
 

 
 
 

 
Public Council Meeting 

Tuesday, October 10, 2017 at 7:00 pm 
Location:  Council Chambers 

 
1.  Call of Meeting to order 
 
2.  Adoption of Agenda for October 10, 2017 
 
3.  Delegations/Presentations 

 Swearing in of Tina Neary 
 

4.  Adoption of Minutes of September 28, 2017 
 
5.  Business Arising from Minutes 
 
6. Revised Committee Structure 
 

7.  Department Meeting Reports 

  
 a)  Planning & Development: 
  Applications: 

1) Civic # 154A Tolt Road – Accessory Building 
 

  Correspondence: 

2) Town of Paradise – Proposed Amendment to the St. John’s Urban Region Regional 
Plan 

 

  Permits Issued: 

3) Permits issued from September 1st to September 29th, 2017 
 

 b) Recreation/Community Services:   
1) Indian Meal Line – Purchase of ROW  
2) PCSP Intermediate School – Students Usage of the Park/Town usage of the School  
3) Inclusion Committee  
4) Athletic Business Show  
5) Community Grants  

 
 c)  Public Works:   

1) Department Overview & Project Status  
2) Reallocation Capital Budget – Equipment Procurement  
3) Sidewalk Snow Removal/Multi-purpose Unit Tender PCSP-2017-004  
4) Depot Yard Fence Repair & Extension  
5) Asphalt Repair Work  
6) Animal Control Services  

cmurray
Text Box
Version 2.1



 

 
 

   d) Economic Development, Marketing, Communications:  
1) Departmental Overview 
2) Community Statistics Summary 
3) Advisory Committees Review 
4) Projects Briefing 
5) Council Orientation Planning 
6) 2018 Budget Consultations 

 
 e)  Protective Services:  

1) Commissionaires – Municipal Enforcement  
2) FES Updates 
3) Municipal Enforcement Officer’s (MEO) report 

 
 f)  Administration and Finance: 

1) Accounts for Payment 
2) General Discussion 

 
g)  Other Reports 

  
8.  Correspondence 

 Correspondence received from October 2-6, 2017 
 
9.  New/General/Unfinished Business    

a) Municipal Assessment Agency Annual Report for 2016-2017 
b) Staffing 

 
10.  Agenda items/Notice of Motions etc.    
 
11.  Adjournment 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DELEGATIONS / 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
#3 - Delegations/Presentations 
 

 Swearing in of Tina Neary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 September 29, 2017 Council Minutes 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF PORTUGAL COVE-ST. PHILIP’S 
September 29, 2017 

Regular Public Council Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Mayor     Moses Tucker 
   Deputy Mayor    Gavin Will 
   Councillors:    Dave Bartlett 
        Norm Collins 
        Aaron Facey 
        Johnny Hanlon 

Town Manager/Engineer   Chris Milley 
Director of Recreation/Comm. Service Dawn Sharpe 
Public Works    Gail Tucker  
Planning Technician   Les Spurrell 
Emp. & Public Relations Administrator Heather Coughlan 
Deputy Town Clerk   Claudine Murray 
 

Mayor Tucker called the meeting to order and welcomed the gallery of 24 persons in attendance noting regrets 
from Councillor Bulter and new Councillor to be sworn in Tina Neary.  Also in the gallery are the new Council to 
be sworn in as follows: Carol McDonald, Jeff Laham, Darryl J. Harding, and Madonna Stewart Sharpe. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA         

 

Motion:  Facey/Collins 
2017-430 Resolved that the Agenda dated September 29, 2017, be adopted as circulated. 
Carried  Unanimously 
 
DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

 None for this meeting 
 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Motion: Will/Facey 
2017-431 Resolved that the minutes of September 12, 2017 be adopted as circulated. 
Carried  Unanimously 
 
BUSINESS ARISING 
The Town Manager/Engineer expressed his thanks to the members of the current Council for their time and 
dedication in service to the residents of the community.  Congratulations to the newly elected Council as he 
looks forward to administering their plan for the Town of Portugal Cove-St. Philips. 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 September 29, 2017 Council Minutes 

 

 

 

 
ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT  
 

Motion: Will/Facey 
2017-432 Resolved that Council approve payment of regular accounts in the amount of $129,064.09 and 

capital accounts in the amount of $593,387.03 for a total of $722,451.12 as tabled. 
Carried Unanimously 
 

 Note: the agenda package to be updated with current accounts for payment report and cheque 
 register. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 None for this meeting 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Broad Cove Ridge 
As a result of a bankruptcy involving the development company of Broad Cove Ridge, the Town has 
called in the security deposit to complete the subdivision in accordance with the subdivision 
agreement.  A request for tenders was issued to finish the project.  This work includes sidewalks, 
landscaping, asphalt and other Phase II project works.  Due to the construction season restrictions, 
the tender is recommended to be awarded tonight to ensure the project is complete this year.  The 
Town received five bids for the Broad Cove Ridge Phase II Tender. 
 

Motion:  Will/Hanlon 
2017-433 Resolved that the Broad Cove Ridge Phase II Tender, Project #SJN-00019798-a1 (Phase 58), be 

awarded to Pyramid Construction at a cost of $209,668. 
Carried Unanimously 
 

2. Campaign Contributions 
Deputy Mayor Will noted that he submitted his ‘Oath or Affirmation of Campaign Contributions 
Disclosure Where Individual Contributions (Money, Goods or Services) Exceeded $100’ form, as 
well as, a statement of election expenses. 

 

GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

1. SWEARING IN OF NEW COUNCIL 
The Deputy Town Clerk administered the Oath of Office to each newly elected Councillor and the 
newly elected Mayor as tabled. 
 
Note: Tina Neary will be sworn is as a new Councillor at the next Regular Council meeting. 

 
2. ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR 
The Mayor called for nominations for the position of Deputy Mayor.  Being that only one 
nomination was received, Jeff Laham was declared Deputy Mayor. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 September 29, 2017 Council Minutes 

 

 

 

 
3. SIGNING OFFICERS 
 

Motion:  Hanlon/Bartlett 
2017-434 Resolved that Mayor Carol McDonald and Deputy Mayor Laham be designated to have signing 

authority for the Town of Portugal Cove-St. Philip’ in accordance with Section 76(2) of the 
Municipalities Act; and, that all cheques will be signed by two signing officers as follows: Mayor 
or Deputy Mayor and co-signed by either the Director of Admin/Finance or the Town Manager. 

Carried Unanimously 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 
RECEIVED CONTRIBUTOR REGARDING DISTRIBUTION 

Sept 19, 2017 Qalipu Cultural 
Foundation 

third annual Ke’tipnemk Fundraising Dinner & 
Silent Auction 

For Information 
Only 

Sept 21, 2017 MNL Notice of Motion – Annual General Meeting 2017 All Council 

Sept 25, 2017 Municipal Assessment 
Agency 

Call for Nominations -Urban & Avalon Region 
Director 

For Information 
Only 

Sept 26, 2017 Dept of Municipal 
Affairs 

Capital Investment Plan Approval For Committee 

Sept 26, 2017 Canadian Metal Health 
Association 

Thank you for continued support of Tickle Swim For Information 

Sept 27, 2017 Dept of Municipal 
Affairs 

MUNICIPAL CIRCULAR- Regional Government 
Public Consultations (Reminder) 

For Information 

Sept 27, 2017 National Defense Army Reserve Open House For Information 

Sept 27, 2017 Gov of NL and Lab Fire 
and Emergency Services 

Request for Financial Assistance under the Fire 
Protection Vehicle Program 

For Committee 

   
 
NEW/GENERAL/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. Council meeting time 
 

Motion: Laham/Harding 
2017-435 Resolved that the Regular Council meetings be held on Tuesdays at 7:00 pm, effective October 

10th, 2017. 
Carried Unanimously 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 September 29, 2017 Council Minutes 

 

 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion: Bartlett/Hanlon 
2017-436 Resolved that this meeting be adjourned. Time is 5:43 p.m. 
Carried Unanimously 

 
 
 
_________________________ 
Carol McDonald, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Claudine Murray, Deputy Town Clerk 

 
 
 

Appendix A – Oaths of Office 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS ARISING 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
#5 - Business Arising from Minutes 
 

 Town Manager/Engineer’s Report 



# 6 - COMMITTEEE APPOINTMENT 

MOTION:  Council recommends the following Committee Structure: 

 Administration and Finance 

 Economic Development, Marketing, Communications and Tourism  

 Planning and Development 

 Protective Services 

 Public Works  

 Recreation and Community Services  
 

MOTION: Council recommends that the following Committee membership be adopted for no more than a 

two year term, and shall be reviewed by the Committee of the Whole after no more than two years, which 

is in accordance to section 34(b) of the Towns’ Rules of Procedure. The Mayor is ex-officio on all 

committees. 

Planning and Development Tuesday 4:00 pm 

 Chairperson Darryl J. Harding 

 Member Johnny Hanlon 

 Member Jeff Laham 

 

Administration and Finance Tuesday 6:00 pm 

 Chairperson Jeff Laham 

 Member Darryl J. Harding 

 Member Madonna Stewart Sharpe 

 

Protective Services Tuesday 6:00 pm 

 Chairperson Johnny Hanlon 

 Member Dave Bartlett 

 Member Tina Neary 

 

Economic Development, 
Marketing, Communications 
and Tourism 

Wednesday 3:30 pm 

 Chairperson Tina Neary 

 Member Dave Bartlett 

 Member Madonna Stewart Sharpe 

 

Public Works Wednesday 4:30 pm 

 Chairperson Dave Bartlett 

 Member Darryl J. Harding 

 Member Jeff Laham 

 

Recreation and Community 
Services 

Wednesday 6:30 pm 

 Chairperson Madonna Stewart Sharpe 

 Member Johnny Hanlon 

 Member Tina Neary 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING &  

DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

 

 

 



Planning and Development Report 
 

October 3rd, 2017 
 

In Attendance:  Les Spurrell, Planning & Development Coordinator 

Ashley MacKinnon, Planning Technician 
 

Also in Attendance: Deputy Mayor Jeff Laham 
   Councillor Darryl Harding 
   Chris Milley, Town Manager/Engineer 

 
 

1. Civic # 154A Tolt Road – Accessory Building 
Motion: I move that the application to construct an accessory building at Civic # 154A Tolt Road be 

granted approval in principle as per Appendix A: Tabled Report. 
 
 

2. Town of Paradise – Proposed Amendment to the St. John’s Urban Region Regional Plan 
The Planning Department is in receipt of a letter from the Town of Paradise proposing to amend 
the St. John’s Urban Region Regional Plan to coincide with the Town’s Municipal Plan & 
Development Regulations currently under review. This amendment involves the re-designation 
of lands from Restricted Development, Rural, Urban Development and Public Open Space to 
Restricted Development, Urban Development, Quarry Development and Regional Industrial. 

 
Motion:  I move that Council forward correspondence to the Town of Paradise stating that they have 

no concerns with the proposed amendment. 
 
 

3. Permits Issued 
There were thirty seven (37) permits issued from September 1st to September 29th, 2017 as per 
Appendix A: Tabled Report. 

 

cmurray
Typewritten Text

cmurray
Typewritten Text

cmurray
Typewritten Text

cmurray
Typewritten Text

cmurray
Typewritten Text

cmurray
Typewritten Text



Planning and Development Report Appendix A: Tabled Report – October 3
rd

, 2017 

 
Appendix A: Tabled Report 

October 3rd, 2017 
 

Application: 
 
Item # 1: 

Civic # 154A Tolt Road  
Accessory Building 
Zoning: Residential Medium Density (RMD) –Unserviced 
 

  I move that the application for Civic # 154A Tolt Road be granted approval in principle, 
permitting the construction of an accessory building. Approval in principle shall be in full 
compliance with the Town’s Municipal Plan & Development Regulations and all other 
regulatory bodies of government, specifically Development Regulation 39 (Accessory 
Buildings), Development Regulation 49 (Non-Conforming Use), and Schedule C: Residential 
Medium Density. 

 
The Administrator recommended that Council use their discretion to grant approval in principle 
to this application. 

 
 
Permits Issued: 
 
Item # 3: 

# Permit Issued Date Civic # Street Name Permit Type 

1 17-269 09/01/2017 6 Hilltop Lane Occupancy 

2 17-270 09/05/2017 1543-1549 Thorburn Road Patio/Deck 

3 17-271 09/05/2017 20-30 Coadys Road Cemetery Expansion 

4 17-272 09/06/2017 10 River Front Drive Relocate Accessory Building 

5 17-273 09/06/2017 10 River Front Drive Accessory Building 

6 17-274 09/06/2017 14 Larkspur Lane Occupancy 

7 17-275 09/06/2017 97 Dogberry Hill Road Occupancy 

8 17-276 09/07/2017 193-195 Old Broad Cove Road Accessory Building 

9 17-277 09/11/2017 11 Kittiwake Place Test Holes 

10 17-278 09/11/2017 74-78 Olivers Pond Road Accessory Building 

11 17-279 09/12/2017 5 Prince George Drive Test Holes 

12 17-280 09/12/2017 352-358 Tolt Road Subdivide Property 

13 17-281 09/13/2017 304-308 Tolt Road Accessory Building 

14 17-282 09/13/2017 222-234 Dogberry Hill Road Dwelling Renovations 

15 17-283 09/14/2017 1465 Thorburn Road Single Dwelling 

16 17-284 09/15/2017 385-389 Dogberry Hill Road Accessory Building 

17 17-285 09/18/2017 31-33 Drover Heights Patio/Deck 



Planning and Development Report Appendix A: Tabled Report – October 3
rd

, 2017 

 

18 17-286 09/18/2017 1208-1218 Thorburn Road Accessory Building 

19 17-287 09/19/2017 204-206 Bennetts Road Accessory Building 

20 17-288 09/19/2017 13 Megan Ridge Drive Dwelling Renovations 

21 17-289 09/19/2017 356-358 Tolt Road Test Holes 

22 17-290 09/21/2017 
155-157 & 
159-161 

Western Gully Road Reconfigure Boundaries 

23 17-291 09/21/2017 155-157 Western Gully Road Relocate Accessory Building 

24 17-292 09/21/2017 155-157 Western Gully Road Site Preparation 

25 17-293 09/22/2017 109-111 Windsor Heights Accessory Building 

26 17-294 09/22/2017 1777 Portugal Cove Road Site Preparation 

27 17-295 09/22/2017 1779-1781 Portugal Cove Road Site Preparation 

28 17-296 09/22/2017 5 Eileen Place Occupancy 

29 17-297 09/22/2017 51-53 Nearys Pond Road Demolition 

30 17-298 09/22/2017 51-53 Nearys Pond Road Site Preparation 

31 17-299 09/25/2017 2-4 Ursula Crescent Reconfigure Boundaries 

32 17-300 09/25/2017 2-4 Ursula Crescent Site Preparation 

33 17-301 09/26/2017 21-23 Woodland Drive Accessory Building 

34 17-302 09/27/2017 35 Bradburys Road Accessory Building 

35 17-303 09/27/2017 35 Bradburys Road Demolition 

36 17-303 09/27/2017 423-425 Old Broad Cove Road Accessory Building 

37 17-304 09/27/2017 1 Marie Place Occupancy 

38 17-305 09/29/2017 1-15 Meadow Heights Water Connection 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECREATION &  

COMMUNITY 

SERVICES 



 

RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES  
No Meeting – Recreation Dept Report 

 
 
   
1. Indian Meal Line – Purchase of ROW 
The documents for the purchase of the ROW on Indian Meal Line has been sent to the lawyers to be 
prepared.  We hope to have the documents ready within the next week so that Grand Concourse can 
complete the cutting of the trail.   
  
2. PCSP Intermediate School – Students Usage of the Park/Town usage of the School 
The recreation staff met with the Principal and the Physical Education teacher of PCSPI.  We discussed 
the usage of the Town’s sports facilities by the students and the use of the school’s facilities by the 
Town.  It was a very positive meeting and we are confident that this relationship will have a great impact 
on programs and specials events offered by the Town.   

 
3. Inclusion Committee 
The Recreation Director hosting the first meeting of the new Inclusion Committee on Thursday, 
September 21st.  Six residents were available to meet, with three others that expressed interest and will 
attend the next meeting on October 19th.  The purpose, as well as the goals and objectives, of the 
committee were discussed and committee members were sent the minutes to review and make 
comments.  We hope that at the next meeting we can confirm the structure and forward the 
information to the Recreation Committee for review.   
 
4.  Athletic Business Show 
The Athletic Business Show is taking place in Orlando, FL from November 8th-11th.  There are over 250 
exhibitors showcasing their latest products, services, and programs.  With the Lifestyle Centre in the 
preliminary stages, this conference would be beneficial and provide innovative ideas for this project.  I 
would like to put forward the following recommendation: 

 
Motion:           I recommend that the Recreation Director attend the Athletic Business Conference in Orlando, FL 

from November 8th-11th as allocated in the budget.   
 

5. Community Grants 
After reviewing the Community Grant Applications, I would like to put forward the 
following recommendations:  
 

Motion:        L recommends that Council donate the Recreation Centre on October 29th to Beverly Best 
for a paint night fund-raiser for the Gathering Place. 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 Public Works

October 4, 2017 
 

In attendance: Councillor Dave Bartlett 
 Deputy Mayor Jeff Laham 

 Councillor Darryl Harding 
 Mayor Carol MacDonald (Item 1) 

Staff: Gail Tucker, Director of Public Works  
 Linda Newhook, Public Works Coordinator 

    
1. Department Overview & Project Status 
Staff provided an overview of the department’s operations and current project status.   

 
2. Reallocation Capital Budget – Equipment Procurement 
Staff provided an overview of the 2017 equipment procurement budget and the plan for actual 
expenditures.  A revised plan has been developed to support the purchase of the Sidewalk Snow 
Removal/Multi-purpose Unit and to reflect a change in the required model for a snow 
clearing/plow truck.  The revised plan remains within budgeted dollars.  
   
3. Sidewalk Snow Removal/Multi-purpose Unit Tender PCSP-2017-004 
The tender for the acquisition of a Sidewalk Snow Removal/Multi-purpose Unit closed on 
September 25, 2017.  There was one (1) qualified bidder.  This equipment will be used in both the 
Streets and Facilities divisions of Public Works.  
 

Motion: I move that Tender PCSP-2017-004 for the purchase of a Sidewalk Snow Removal/Multi-purpose 
Unit be awarded to the lowest, qualified bidder, Saunders Equipment Ltd., at a cost of 
$218,109.00 HST included.   

 
4. Depot Yard Fence Repair & Extension 
The fencing in the Depot yard is in need of repair.  The fencing will be repaired and extended 
approximately 30’ to accommodate snow clearing requirements and the growth in fleet.  In its 
current state of disrepair, the fence poses security and safety concerns.    
 

Motion: I move that the repairs and extension of the Depot fencing be approved as per the quote from 
Provincial Fencing at a cost of $8,521.50 HST included.   

 
5. Asphalt Repair Work 
Additional areas for asphalt repair work have been identified.  These include a laydown area in 
the depot yard to support snow clearing operations (specifically sidewalk snow clearing and ice 
control), swaling on School Road to mitigate storm water issues in the area and swaling and 
asphalt repair on Bocker Place to address storm water and asphalt erosion issues.  A quote from 
Mercers Paving has been obtained.  This work needs to be addressed prior to the end of the 
construction season while the asphalt plants remain open. 
 

Motion: I move that the per unit cost of $30 per square metre for asphalt repair work provided by 
Mercers Paving, for a total of $12,530.00 plus HST, be approved.    



 
 
 

  
6. Animal Control Services 
Committee was provided an overview of the Town’s current approach with respect to Animal 
Control Services and the proposed partnership for Animal Control Services with the Town of 
Torbay.  At this time, staff are awaiting an update from the Town of Torbay on its Animal Control 
Officer position which was vacated earlier this year. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ECONOMIC DEV., 

MARKETING, 

COMMUNICATIONS 

& TOURISM 
 

 

 

 

 



Economic Development, Marketing, 
Communications and Tourism Report 
Friday, October 6, 2017 
3:30 pm 

 
 
 
 In attendance:    Councillor Dave Bartlett 
     Councillor Madonna Stewart-Sharpe  

Jeff Lawlor, Director Economic Development, Marketing 
and Communications  

 
1. Departmental Overview 

The Director reviewed the mandate of the committee and the department. The roles and 
responsibilities of staff were discussed and an overview of some of the past priorities and 
projects.  
 

2. Community Statistics Summary 

The meeting attendees reviewed recent Census statistics of the town, the results of the demographics 

and perceptions survey (completed in 2016) and the survey results from the Service Level 
Review. This is all previously tabled and public information.  
 

3. Advisory Committees Review 

The meeting attendees reviewed the terms of reference of the advisory committees and a summary of 

some of the projects they are currently working on and have completed in the past. Both the 
advisory committees’ terms are up in 6 months from the election, in order for Council to 
evaluate how they want to proceed with the committees during their term of Council.  

 
4. Projects Briefing 

A number of current projects were briefly discussed. The Service Level Review will require a 
decision from Council in the coming weeks to finalize the six key service areas that will be 
reviewed in the next phase of the project.  
 
Attached to this report is the “Water Quality Monitoring of the Beachy Cove Brook and Miller’s 
Pond River Systems in Portugal Cove – St. Philip’s” report completed by this summer’s Green 
Team. This is submitted as information only.  
 
The town is partnering with the Chamber of Commerce during Small Business week this year. On 
Wednesday, October 18th the Chamber will be having their first AGM. The event will feature 
guest speaker Dr. Wade Locke. The event will take place at Murray’s Pond Fishing and Country 
Club at 7:00 pm and council are invited to attend.  
 

5. Council Orientation Planning 
Staff are working with numerous committees, businesses, organizations and stakeholder groups 
to set up a schedule for the next couple months for Council to meet and engage with them. This 
includes a formal request made by the Chamber of Commerce of Portugal Cove – St. Philip’s that 
is attached.   



 

6. 2018 Budget Consultations 
Public budget consultations will take place in November. The Director of Economic Development 
will work with Council and Management to create a schedule and engagement plan.  

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tabled items at end of  

Council Package for: 

Economic Develop.,
Marketing &
Communications  

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROTECTIVE  

SERVICES 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Protective Services  

Tuesday, October 3, 2017 

 

 

No meeting was held 

 

1. Commissionaires – Municipal Enforcement 

An update report, as provided by the Municipal Enforcement Officer, has been tabled as 

Appendix A. 

 

2. FES Updates 

- The Fire Department wishes to send greetings to the new members of 

Council. We are looking forward to meeting and working with you all. 

- Update on the Northeast Avalon Regional Training, the last two weekends hosted SCBA 

courses. 

- Fire Department Ball was held on September 16th, awards were presented to Firefighter of 

the Year: FF Megan Smith, and Fire Officer of the Year: Lt. Terry Scott. 

- Completed orientation with the new Intermediate school and there will be follow up with 

the principal. 

- Fire Prevention Week is October 8 – 15th, activities are scheduled and the theme is “Every 

Second Counts – Plan 2 Ways Out”. Banners have been posted on both stations and 

information posted to the Town Signs, as well as promotion on the Town’s website and 

social media pages. 

- Recently received a donation of 14 pails of foam from the offshore vessel Maersk Cutter, a 

thank you letter has been sent from the Chiefs on behalf of the Department and the Town. 

- An updated Fire Department profile was provided for inclusion with the new Council 

Orientation Package. 

- The chiefs are now working on 2018 budget preparation. 

 

 



Protective Services 

APPENDIX A: TABLED MEO REPORT 

 

PROTECTIVE SERVICES: 

 

- investigating a noise complaint on Dogberry Hill Ext 

- tip from resident about drug activity on Bradbury’s Road sent to RNC. Stepped up Patrols in area 

- report of illegal sewage dumping watching for trucks at off hours 

- deliver letter to resident on Bauline Line Ext about roaming dogs and also in Hugh’s Pond road  

- schools opened stepped up awareness and drive bus for speed control.  

- theft at St. Phillips Marina.  

- vehicle abandoned on Bennetts Road, owner located and removed.  

- extra patrols in Rusty’s Loop area, possible group home or respite workers.  

- met with RNC and Chris Milley about speeding on Old Broad Cove Road.  

- investigating report of bus parking on Netherwood area. It is in Paradise.  

- municipal election extra patrols to polling stations.  

- assisted Planning Department with issuing of letters to residents.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

& FINANCE 
 

 

 

 

 



  
 

 
 

 
Administration & Finance Report 

October 2nd, 2017 - 6:00 p.m. 
 
 

In attendance:               Deputy Mayor Laham  

   Councillor Harding     
   Mayor McDonald  
Staff:   Tony Pollard, Director of Financial Operations 
   Chris Milley ,Town Mamager /Engineer 

 
1. Accounts for Payment  

 

MOTION:      I recommen that Council approve payment of capital accounts in the amount of 

$57,721.94 
 

2. General Discussion 
 

 The intention of this fAdministration and Finance meeting was for Council to 
obtain a brief orientation into the functioning of the committee and to discuss ongoing issue 
that arise in this committee from time to time. 

                         
                       The Director of Financial Operations  reviewed briefly sources of Municipal Revenue and the 

projects committed under each source provided by the Provincial and Federal Governments. 
 
                       Some other issues discussed in brief related to use of levies , depot rationalization and Maggies 

Place functionality and costing. 
 
                       Discussions with Council relating to the 2018 budget will commence within the coming weeks 

and more analysis wll be forthcoming during that process. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tabled items at end of  

Council Package for: 

Administration  

& Finance 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 

 

 

 



Council Correspondence for October 2, 2017 – October 6, 2017 

RECEIVED CONTRIBUTOR REGARDING DISTRIBUTION 
October 2, 
2017 

Coalition of Persons 
with Disabilities NL 

Invitation: training sessions For Information 

October 2, 
2017 

Community Sector 
Council NL 

Fall Training Events For Information 

October 3, 
2017 

Heritage Foundation NL Invitation to Adapting Heritage, a conference that 
considers Heritage and the Future of Communities 

For Information 

October 3, 
2017 

Resident Letter stating: Approval in Principal 842 frontage 
Longmarsh Road 

P&D Cmte 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                     

 

 

 

Presented by: 

Inclusion is more than just being present.  It is about having the 
opportunity to fully contribute to your community, and being 
able to access all the benefits and services most people take for 
granted.  Claiming Full Citizenship shares how we can all work 
together to ensure that every person in our community and 
province has the equitable opportunity to contribute and to 
belong. 

Claiming Full Citizenship for Persons with Disabilities 

Monday, October 16th in Corner Brook from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. 

Wednesday, October 25th in St. John’s from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. 

 

When it comes to supporting a person with a disability, parents 
and caregivers can’t always be expected to do it alone.  A 
Shared Responsibility approach look at how individuals, 
families, community groups, and government can all work 
together to make sure that people are supported and have a 
plan for their future.  This session will also cover information 
on housing for persons with disabilities, supported decision 
making, future planning, and home supports. 

Global Disability Expert 
 

is coming to Newfoundland & Labrador! 

 

Global Disability Expert Dr. Leighton Jay 
 

Shared Responsibility 

Monday, October 16th in Corner Brook from 1 p.m. – 4 p.m. 

Thursday, October 26th in St. John’s from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. 

 

Dr. Leighton Jay 
 

 

Register Now! 

Come join us for this rare opportunity 

Corner Brook  - October 16th, 2017 
St. John’s - October 25th & 26th, 2017  

 
Two Important Sessions: 

There is no cost 
to attend but 

Space is limited! 

 

To secure your 
seat, register by 

calling 
(709) 722-0790 

or email 
info@nlacl.ca 

 



From: Community Sector Council [mailto:feedback@cscnl.ca]  

Sent: Monday, October 02, 2017 8:59 AM 
To: pcsp 

Subject: CSCNL Fall Training Events 

 

 

View the web version.  

   

Fall Training Events 2017 

     

   

 

Register today for some amazing CSC NL learning opportunities with  
in-person workshops and live online webinars! 

 

Wednesday, October 4, 2017  
 

Creative HR Webinar: How to Discipline Fairly  
2:00 - 3:00 pm 

Learn the steps to progressive discipline. This information only webinar 
will provide the basics on how to fairly discipline employees.  

Facilitator: Tina Mulrooney, HR Specialist  
Learn more and register!   

Thursday, October 5, 2017  

Creative HR: Focus Group (In-Person) 
10:00 am - 12:00 pm 

Join CSC NL for an examination of the community-based labour market. We 
need your input on how to measure needs, identify the issues and plan for 
improved Human Resources (HR) management. Facilitator: Tina Mulrooney, 

HR Specialist  
Have something to say, register today.  

 

mailto:feedback@cscnl.ca
http://communitysector.nl.ca/newsletter/2017/TrainingNewsletterFall2017.htm
http://communitysector.nl.ca/fairdisciplineCHR
http://communitysector.nl.ca/focusgroup1
http://communitysector.nl.ca/
http://twitter.com/cscnl
http://facebook.com/cscnl
http://communitysector.nl.ca/fairdisciplineCHR
http://communitysector.nl.ca/focusgroup1


Healthy Board Governance Workshop: 
Board Manuals, Risk Assessment and Insurance  

2:00 - 4:00 pm 

Learn how to use a Board Manual for orienting new directors, do a risk 
assessment exercise, and review various insurance policies. Handouts and 
resources provided. Facilitator: Darlene Scott, Senior Program Associate  

Only 2 seats left, reserve yours today!  
 

Wednesday, October 11, 2017  

Buy the Books Webinar: Payroll, Benefits and Remittances  
Paying Your Employees Correctly  

11:00 am - 12:00 pm 

This webinar will cover deductions and calculations, remittances, WHSCC, 
due dates, and everything in between. Facilitator: Shelley Martin, CPA, CA  

Learn more and register!   

Thursday, October 12, 2017  

Healthy Board Governance Workshop:  
Financial Health, Budgeting and Compliance Reporting  

2:00 - 4:00 pm 

Learn budgeting tips and tools, how and when to review budgets and relate 
a budget to annual reporting requirements in the sector. Facilitator: 

Shelley Martin, CPA, CA  
Learn more and register.  

 

Saturday, October 14, 2017  

Workshop: Strategic Doing Methodology  
9:30 am - 3:00 pm 

We hear people talk about the importance of collaboration, but how do we 
design these collaborations? How do we manage them? Strategic Doing 

provides a simple set of rules to answer these questions and we are thrilled 
to be offering this 1-day training workshop at the Bowring Park Bungalow 

in St. John's.  
Space is limited, register early!  

 

Monday, October 16, 2017  

http://communitysector.nl.ca/bgoct5
http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBPayrollWeb11Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/bgoct12
http://communitysector.nl.ca/stratdoing
http://communitysector.nl.ca/bgoct5
http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBPayrollWeb11Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/bgoct12
http://communitysector.nl.ca/stratdoing


Buy the Books Workshop: Learn to Reconcile your Bank Account 
2:00 - 4:00 pm  

Learn how to reconcile a bank statement with a hands-on exercise and 
resources. Discuss the importance of spot checks in the bookkeeping 

process and relate the bank reconciliation to cash flow. Facilitator: Shelley 
Martin, CPA, CA  

Limit is 20, register early!  
 

Wednesday, October 18, 2017  

Creative HR Webinar: How to Select and Score Interviews Fairly  
2:00 - 3:00 pm 

Relate your job ad and job description to a fair process for examining 
candidates in the employee selection process. Facilitator: Tina Mulrooney, 

HR Specialist  
Learn more and register.   

Buy the Books Workshop: Understanding Financial Statements in 
the Nonprofit Sector 

Evening session: 7:30 - 9:00 pm 

Getting ready for an AGM? Prepping for year-end? Want to volunteer on a 
finance committee? This session is for you! Guest Facilitator: Larry Short, 

CPA, CGA  
Limit is 20, reserve your seat today!  

 

Thursday, October 19, 2017  
 

Creative HR Workshop: Creating a Respectful Workplace  
All Day (In Person): 9:00 am - 4:00 pm 

There are known steps you can take as an employer and colleague to 
maintain respectful work practices. Learn to avoid the pitfalls in this day-

long session.  
Guest Facilitator: Lisa Birmingham, Women in Resource Development 

Corporation  
Limit is 20, reserve your seat today!  

 

Tuesday, October 24, 2017  

http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBBankRec16Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/selectandscore
http://communitysector.nl.ca/USFSwithLSOct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/respectwkplc
http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBBankRec16Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/selectandscore
http://communitysector.nl.ca/USFSwithLSOct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/respectwkplc


Buy the Books Workshop: Accounting Basics for Nonprofit 
Organizations  

10:00 am - 12:00 pm 

Before your financial statements can be prepared for the board of 
directors or other stakeholders, financial transactions must be analyzed, 

recorded and posted. Learn about setting them up in advance. Facilitator: 
Shelley Martin, CPA, CA  

Limit is 20, reserve your seat today!  
 

Creative HR Workshop: Conflict Resolution 
2:30 - 4:30 pm 

Gain an understanding of healthy versus destructive conflict, the common 
causes and sources of conflict, and strategies for managing and resolving 
conflict in the workplace. Guest facilitator: Tammy Sheppard MER, BBA, 

Q.Med.  
Limit is 20, reserve your seat today!  

 

November 1 - 2, 2017  

Building Evaluation Capacity  
in the Community Sector  

Train-the-Trainer Opportunity  

We are seeking Expressions of Interest from colleagues in the community 
sector who have facilitation experience and are interested in receiving 

training that will prepare them to deliver a 1-day "Introduction to 
Outcomes Measurement" workshop.  

Learn more.  

 

 

 
Connecting people... organizations... communities 
Community Sector Council Newfoundland and Labrador 

St. John's | Gander  
1 866 753 9860 

www.communitysector.nl.ca  
Follow us on Twitter 
Find us on Facebook 

Unsubscribe from CSC NL Emails 
  

 

Please click here for The Town of Portugal Cove-St. Philip’s email Disclaimer  

 

http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBAcctingBasics24Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/conflictresolution
http://communitysector.nl.ca/bec
http://www.communitysector.nl.ca/
http://www.twitter.com/cscnl
http://www.facebook.com/cscnl
http://communitysector.nl.ca/unsubscribe
http://pcsp.ca/?Content=Disclaimer
http://communitysector.nl.ca/BTBAcctingBasics24Oct2017
http://communitysector.nl.ca/conflictresolution
http://communitysector.nl.ca/bec


From: Andrea O'Brien [mailto:andrea@heritagefoundation.ca]  

Sent: Tuesday, October 03, 2017 3:11 PM 
To: andrea@heritagefoundation.ca 

Subject: 1 week left to register for Adapting Heritage  

 

Attention returning councillors, new councillors and municipal staff…  
 

 
 

A conference that considers Heritage and the Future of Communities 
 

The Heritage Foundation of Newfoundland & Labrador, in partnership 

with Memorial University, is holding a conference that explores the 

ways that heritage needs to adapt to be sustainable and relevant in the 

21
st
 century.  Presenters from around Newfoundland and Labrador and 

across Canada will explore the theme with sessions on such topics as: 

 
 Heritage as a Tool for Community Revitalization 

 Perspectives on Heritage and Sustainability 
 The Dollars & Sense of Heritage 
 Place-making and Heritage 

 Adapting Heritage to Regulations & Codes 

 

For additional information and to register check out the conference 

website: www.adaptingheritage.ca 
 
For those driving or flying within Newfoundland and Labrador travel subsidies are 
available to individuals outside of the Avalon Peninsula. As subsidies are limited, these 
will be provided on a first come, first served basis until the travel fund is used up.  
 

Registration deadline – October 9, 2017   
 
 

mailto:andrea@heritagefoundation.ca
mailto:andrea@heritagefoundation.ca
http://www.adaptingheritage.ca/


Andrea O'Brien 
Municipal Outreach Officer/Provincial Registrar 
Heritage Foundation of Newfoundland & Labrador 

P.O. Box 5171, 1 Springdale Street 
St. John's, NL, Canada  A1C 5V5 

 

Phone: 709-739-1892  Ext 4  
Toll free phone: 1-888-739-1892 

Email: andrea@heritagefoundation.ca 

www.heritagefoundation.ca 

 

mailto:andrea@heritagefoundation.ca
http://www.heritagefoundation.ca/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW/GENERAL/ 

UNFINISHED 

BUSINESS 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

#9 – New/General/Unfinished Business    

 
a)  Annual Report as presented by Administration and Finance Cmte 

 
The Municipal Assessment Agency's Annual Report for 2016-17 was received on October 5th, 2017 and is 
tabled with this report.  Please note the report has also been posted on the Agency's website at 
http://www.maa.ca. 
 

 b)  Staffing
 
 

 

http://www.maa.ca/


 
 

 
 

     Annual Report     

2016-17 



 
 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 MARCH 31, 2017 

 
Chairperson     Mayor Dean Ball  

         Deer Lake 
 
Vice-Chairperson          Mayor Elizabeth Moore  

  Clarke’s Beach 

 

 

 MUNICIPAL REPRESENTATIVES 

Labrador  Councillor Deb Barney 

 L’Anse au Loup 

Western  Mayor Dean Ball  

  Deer Lake 

Central  Mayor Robert Hobbs 

  Bishop’s Falls 

Eastern   Mayor Paul Pike 

  St. Lawrence 

Avalon  Mayor Elizabeth Moore  

  Clarke’s Beach 

Urban  Councillor Peggy Roche  

  Torbay 
 

 MUNICIPALITIES NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR REPRESENTATIVE 

  Mayor Roger Barrett 

  Western Director, MNL 
 Reidville 
 

 PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL ADMINISTRATORS REPRESENTATIVE 

  Ms. Vida Greening  

 Eastern Director, PMA 
 Port Blandford  

 

 TAXPAYER REPRESENTATIVES  

  Mr. David Denine 

  Mount Pearl 

  Mr. David Blundon 

  Gander 

 



     

 

Table of Contents 
 

 

 

 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRPERSON 1 
 
 
CORPORATE OVERVIEW 2 
 

 

HIGHLIGHTS  2016-2017 5 
 

 

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE  6 
 

 

SURVEY RESULTS   9 
 
 
OPPORTUNITIES & CHALLENGES 11 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   12 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



     

1 

 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRPERSON 
 

 
On behalf of the Municipal Assessment Agency Incorporated, I have the pleasure to submit 
our annual report and the financial statements for the April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 fiscal 
year.   
 
The Assessment Act, 2006 establishes the Municipal Assessment Agency (the Agency) as the 
entity which provides real property assessment services to municipalities.  Municipalities in 
Newfoundland and Labrador (excluding the City of St. John’s) which impose a real property tax 
or a business tax based on property values use the services of the Agency.  The Municipal 
Assessment Agency is a not for profit entity, with any returns used only to further the activities 
of the Agency. As the entity responsible for providing a fair and effective property assessment 
service to 224 municipalities, we are pleased to support local government in providing valuable 
service to the people of our province. 
 
Education and Public Relations was identified the key priority issue of the Agency for the April 
1, 2014 to March 31, 2017 planning period.  

 
The goal identified for this issue reflects the results expected at the end of the three-year 
timeframe, while the objectives provide annual benchmarks.  
 
In planning and conducting our work, the Board considered the strategic directions of 
government, key questions such as how this issue affected our primary clients, whether or not 
resolving this issue would provide us with the desired “output,” as well as identifying the benefit 
that addressing this issue would provide to our programs and services. These are all critical 
questions that get to the very core of what we identified as our mission as an Agency.  
 
The Agency is scheduled as a Category Two entity under the Transparency and Accountability 
Act, and the board of directors is accountable for the results reported in this document. The 
board’s continuing commitment to openness and transparency, key components of an effective 
property tax system, is demonstrated by this report.     
 
We will continue to fulfill our mandate and look forward to meeting future challenges.  

 
 
 
         Sincerely, 

 
 
                                           
          Dean Ball 
                                                                           Chairperson, Board of Directors



 
    CORPORATE OVERVIEW 
 

2 

 

OUR VISION 

The vision of the Municipal Assessment Agency 
is that of a professional organization meeting 
the property assessment and valuation needs 
of our clients in an effective and cost-efficient 
manner. 
 
Meeting the assessment and valuation needs of 
our clients is at the core of our vision statement. 
We understand the importance of constraining 
the vision statement to be within our means. 
That is, it should be achievable. At the same 
time, we understand the importance of having 
the assessment service we provide tailored to 
fit the means and meet the needs of the 
municipalities we serve. 
 

MANDATE 

The Assessment Act, 2006 establishes the 
Municipal Assessment Agency as the entity 
which provides municipalities their real property 
assessment service.  
 
The services of the Agency are used by 
municipalities in Newfoundland and Labrador 
which impose a real property tax or a business 
tax based on property values. The Agency does 
not serve the City of St. John’s, which provides 
its own assessment service.  

The Assessment Act, 2006 may be accessed 
through the House of Assembly website at 
www.assembly.nl.ca/Legislation/sr/statutes/a18
-1.htm 

 
The Agency is limited by its incorporating 
documents, to the following: 
 

 Assessment activities as per the 
Assessment Act, 2006.  

 Providing and selling 
o Data and assessment information 
o Property inspections 

o Valuation services to all levels of 
the Crown, including municipalities 

 Consultation and taxation services 
 
 

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES 
 
The Municipal Assessment Agency is a “not for 
profit” entity, with returns used only to further 
the activities of the Agency on behalf of its 
clients. 
 
The excess of revenue over expenses for the 
past year was $398,414, a significant recovery 
from last years’ deficit of $98,779.  
 

 
GOVERNANCE 
  
The Agency is a Crown-owned corporation 
which is governed by a ten-member Board of 
Directors. The board includes: six 
representatives who are elected by client 
municipalities; a representative of Municipalities 
Newfoundland and Labrador; a representative 
of the Professional Municipal Administrators; 
and two taxpayer representatives.  
 
Board elections are scheduled every four years 
following the municipal elections. Six municipal 
representatives are elected by a mail-in ballot. 
One director is appointed by the Professional 
Municipal Administrators and one by 
Municipalities Newfoundland and Labrador. The 
remaining two positions are appointed by the 
Province and represent the interest of citizens.   
 
The membership of the Board of Directors, as 
of March 31, 2017, is listed on the inside cover 
of this report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.assembly.nl.ca/Legislation/sr/statutes/a18-1.htm
http://www.assembly.nl.ca/Legislation/sr/statutes/a18-1.htm


CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

3 

 

$13,785  

$17,668 
$18,385  

$19,142 

$25,856 
$26,698 

$27,505 

$33,232 $33,612 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Chart 1 

Provincial Assessed Values 
(millions) 

 

LINES OF BUSINESS 

The Agency has a single line of business - property assessment and valuation. The Agency’s line of 
business is a reflection of our incorporating documents and is summarized as follows: 
 

• Assessment of real property (land, buildings and other improvements) provided to 
municipalities that levy a real property tax. This service is provided under the Assessment 
Act 2006, and is provided for a fee which reflects the cost of the service. This activity 
generates 98% of the Agency’s revenues. 

 
• Sale of assessments and assessment related information, primarily through electronic 

means and within the limitations set by law. The primary clients for this service are realty or 
financial service providers, as well as private interests. This activity generates the remaining 
2% of the Agency’s revenues.  

 
 

KEY STATISTICS 

Permanent staff: 58 (35 male and 23 female) 

Office locations: 11 

Total value of property assessed by the Agency: $ 33,612,000,0001 (Chart 1) 

Number of land parcels: 190,055 

                                                           
1 This is the value of all assessed property (excluding the City of St. John’s) in the province 



CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

4 

 

 

VALUES 

Impartial     We will provide opinions of value without prejudice.  
 
Transparent  We will be responsible for our actions and accountable to the public. 
 
Competent  We will encourage participation in continuing professional development and training 

at all levels within the Agency. 
 
Cooperative  We will actively seek client opinions on our activities and report these opinions to 

direct our vision. 
 
Ethical   Employees and members of the board will seek appropriate guidance to ensure they 

perform their duties in an ethical and responsible manner. 
 

 

 

MANAGEMENT DIRECTORY 

 
Residential Manager  
 Wayne Rossiter 

Residential Manager 
 Terry Peckham 

Manager Financial Operations 
 Jennifer Ryan 
 
Director Valuation Services 
 Don Hearn  

Director Data & Field Services 
 Greg Rumbolt 

Executive Director/CEO 
 Sean Martin 
 

OFFICE DIRECTORY 
 

CORPORATE & EASTERN OFFICES 
75 O’Leary Avenue, St. John’s, NL A1B 2C9 
Tel: (709) 724-1532   Fax: (709) 724-1531 
 

CENTRAL REGIONAL OFFICE 
165 Roe Avenue 
 P.O. Box 570, Gander NL A1V 2E1 
Tel: (709) 651-4460   Fax: (709) 651-4473 

 

WESTERN REGIONAL OFFICE 
24 Brook Street 
P.O Box 20051, Station Main 
Corner Brook NL A2H 7J5 
Tel: (709) 637-7150   Fax: (709) 637-7162 
 

FIELD OFFICES  

 
Happy Valley-Goose Bay 

Tel: (709) 896-5393   Fax: (709) 896-8847 

Conception Bay South 

Tel: (709) 682-9668   Fax: (709) 834-7540 

Carbonear 

Tel: (709) 682-9696   Fax: (709) 596-3046 

Marystown 

Tel: (709) 277-4088   Fax: (709) 279-3578 

Clarenville 

Tel: (709) 427-6446   Fax: (709) 466-5121 

Grand Falls-Windsor 

Tel: (709) 292-3191   Fax: (709) 292-1171 

Stephenville 

Tel: (709) 649-3330   Fax: (709) 643-8571 

Deer Lake 

Tel: (709) 636-1021   Fax: (709) 635-1173 

  



HIGHLIGHTS 2016-17 

5 

 

9,561 

4,094 

547 

15,483 

569 

New Construction/Reno Sales Appeals Quality Assurance Initial

Chart 2 

2016 Site Reviews 

2015

2016

  

The Agency has as its primary focus the 
provision of a quality assessment service 
and the maintenance of positive relations 
with its clients and ratepayers. Within this 
focus, we recognize and support the role of 
employees as advocates for clients in 
supporting the Agency to be able to provide 
the best possible service at every 
opportunity. 

 

ASSESSED VALUES 

In addition to valuation updates, delivered 
every three years (in accordance with the 
Assessment Act, 2006), the Agency 
continued to work to maintain its property 
data, collect sales information, and complete 
revisions to property data to reflect new 
construction and renovations. The number 
and value of the amendments to the property 
data through new construction and 
renovations have increased, but at a slowing 
pace in recent years. For 2016, the Agency 
added $544 million in new construction and 
renovations. At a mil rate of 10, this 
represents an increase of more than five 
million dollars in local property tax revenue 
for municipalities.  
 

Staff continued to conduct site reviews of 
existing and new property, with more than 
30,000 site reviews completed during the 
past year. These reviews were triggered by 
property sales, assessment appeals, new 
construction and renovations, and our quality 
assurance program (see Chart 2 below).  
 
 
 
CLIENT RELATIONS  

Through our training sessions and 
presentations, we have engaged municipal 
officials in the assessment process. Our 
training sessions are offered on a regional 
basis. The Agency’s Board also engages 
with local officials across the province. 
During the past year, sessions were held in 
Corner Brook, Gander, Channel-Port aux 
Basques, Labrador City, Conception Bay 
South, St. John’s, and Marystown. There 
were 165 attendees in total, representing 70 
municipalities.   

  

 

 

 

 



REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 

6 

 

 
In consideration of the mandate and financial resources of the Agency, we have identified the 
following area as the key priority of the Agency for this planning cycle: Education and Public 
Relations. The strategic directions of government were considered but were not applicable to 
the Agency’s mandate. The 2013 municipal elections saw a large increase in the number of first 
time elected mayors and councillors. This, combined with the retirements of existing municipal 
administrators, presented an opportunity for the Agency to focus on education and public 
relations.   
 
During the past year, the Agency implemented an enhanced strategy to improve stakeholder 
understanding. The strategy was multi-faceted with attention to every engagement opportunity 
with key stakeholders (municipal administrators and elected officials and property owners). The 
strategy is aimed at improving public understanding of the Agency’s role in the assessment 
process.  
 
This is the final year of our business plan for 2014-17, and, in accordance with the requirements 
of the Transparency and Accountability Act, we will report on the results of our three-year goals, 
as well as our objectives for the 2016-17 fiscal year.  
 

Issue:  

Education and Public Relations  

The education of stakeholders, and in particular ratepayers, is critical in achieving the public 
understanding of the role of the Municipal Assessment Agency in the property assessment and 
valuation process.  
 
Property tax revenue is the major source of funding for local government in Canada and 
provides a stable base for funding municipal government. It is important municipal officials 
understand the assessment process and have the information necessary to accurately inform 
local residents and make the required financial decisions.  
 
 

Education and Public Relations 
2014-17 GOAL: By March 31, 2017, the Municipal Assessment Agency will have improved public understanding 

of its role in the assessment process. 

INDICATORS: RESULTS 

Better informed the public regarding the roles and 

responsibilities of the Agency through increased 

publications, use of information inserts to accompany 

assessment notices, and an increase in public 

information sessions. 

 Inserts, identifying the reason for the value 

change and the option to review or appeal the 

assessment, were included with assessment 

notices when property values change. 

 The Agency enhanced the summary report, 

containing detailed property detail and 

valuation information, available to property 

owners. 

 The Agency improved its Notice of Visit (left 

at the door when a property owner is not at 

home) to highlight changes made to the 

property. 

 Members of the public often access information 

about assessments and about the Agency 



REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 

7 

 

through municipal officials. Although pubic 

information sessions were not held, in addition 

to the three regional training sessions provided 

for municipal officials annually, the Agency’s 

board met with municipal representatives at 

four board meetings. Ninety five 

representatives from seventy three 

municipalities attended the sessions in 2016-17.   

Enhanced communication with the public through: 

 Improved web-based access 

 Improved our response to survey results by 

communicating to the public all changes made 

as a consequence. 

 Consistent message from Agency publications. 

 Increased the number of publications issued 

annually. 

 

 All Agency publications contained a link to the 

Agency website 

 Updates were provided to municipal clients 

following every Board meeting, advising of the 

decisions of the Board and issues facing the 

Agency.  

 Developed statements to address common 

misperceptions around property assessments 

and used this messaging consistently in 

publications. 

o Municipal government determines the 

local taxation rates 

o The Agency operates at arms-length 

from municipalities. 

o Changes in property assessment do 

not equal a change in property taxes.  

 In addition to our Guide to Property 

Assessment, the Agency produced Appeal 

Procedure Brochure and Combining Parcels 

Brochure. 

 Value change reports were provided annually 

to municipal clients. 

Incorporated a feedback mechanism in all Agency 

communications. 
 Included a website reference in all 

communications  

 Introduced a dedicated email 

(customerservice@maa.ca) for municipal use 

 Introduced a general email (info@maa.ca) for 

public use.  

 
 
The Agency has improved public understanding of the assessment process during the planning 
period. We evaluated the impact of the actions taken over the planning period by conducting 
comparable surveys in 2014 and 2016 (see pages 9-10). The results demonstrate 
improvements in the public understanding of aspects the assessment process, such as the 
relationship between assessed value and market value and the relationship between assessed 
value and taxation. There remains an opportunity to further improve the stakeholder 
understanding of the process and to better engage with stakeholders. This will be the challenge 
for the next planning cycle.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 

8 

 

 

Education and Public Relations 
2016-17 OBJECTIVE: By March 31, 2017, the Municipal Assessment Agency has evaluated its strategy for 

improved stakeholder understanding of the Agency’s role in the property assessment process.  

INDICATORS: RESULTS 

Developed survey methodology to measure stakeholder 

understanding 

 

Based on our previous review of methodology, an on-

line survey was selected as the most practical and 

affordable. The survey targeted ratepayers, municipal 

administrators and municipal elected officials.  

 

The survey mirrored the previous (2014-15) survey to 

ensure comparability.   

Surveyed stakeholders to establish levels of 

understanding 

 

Input was solicited in a number of ways: 

 On-line via the Agency’s website, www.maa.ca 

 On line by email invitation 

 Mailed invitation to complete the survey on the 

Agency’s website.  

 559 surveys were completed 

Reviewed survey results and compare with baselines The survey results were similar to the baseline except: 

 Increase in understanding that assessments are 

not less than market value.  

 Slight decrease in the number of respondents 

who felt property taxes were a good value.   

 Slight decrease in knowledge of individual 

property assessments.  

Evaluate stakeholder understanding Misunderstanding persists about the relationship 

between property assessments and taxes. While a 

majority understand that property assessments are not 

always less than market and an increase in property 

assessment does not mean an increase in taxes, there is a 

significant number (34% and 48%) of people who do 

not, or were unsure. 

 

 
The Agency has evaluated its strategy for improving stakeholder understanding, our objective 
for this period. The survey results indicate that, while understanding is improving in some 
aspects, there continues to be a need for education.  



REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 

9 

 

 

Survey Results 

How familiar are you with property assessment? 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

Extremely familiar 13.2% 10.2% 

Very familiar 36.8% 36.5% 

Moderately familiar 42.1% 47.9% 

Slightly familiar 6.6% 5.0% 

Not at all familiar 1.3% 0.4% 

   

   
Property assessments are always less than market value. 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

True 46.1% 22.0% 

False 40.8% 63.7% 

Unsure 13.2% 14.3% 

   

   
Property assessments are used to determine your property tax. 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

True 96.1% 93.6% 

False 3.9% 6.4% 
Unsure 0.0% 0.0% 

   

   
 Property taxes are a fair way to collect municipal taxes. 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

Strongly agree 42.1% 38.5% 

Somewhat agree 28.9% 32.2% 

Neither agree or disagree 10.5% 12.3% 

Somewhat disagree 13.2% 11.6% 

Strongly disagree 5.3% 5.4% 

      

Property taxes increase whenever the assessed value increases. 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

True 51.3% 46.5% 

False 47.4% 50.8% 

Unsure 1.3% 2.7% 

   



REPORT ON PERFORMANCE 

10 

 

   
Property taxes are good value for the money. 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

Strongly agree 13.2% 15.2% 

Agree 48.7% 50.1% 

Neither agree nor disagree 31.6% 24.9% 

Disagree 6.6% 7.2% 

Strongly disagree 0.0% 2.7% 

      

Do you know the assessed value of your property? 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

Yes 94.7% 87.7% 

No 5.3% 12.0% 

Not applicable 0.0% 0.4% 

   

   
 In your community, who completes the property assessments? 

Answer Options 2014 2016 

Council 5.4% 7.2% 

Province 16.2% 34.0% 

Private company 8.1% 6.1% 

Crown agency 43.2% 52.8% 

 
 



OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES 

11 

 

 

CHALLENGES  
 
During the past year 10 employees elected to retire from public service and we thank them for 
their years with the Agency. The Agency’s ability to recruit and retain qualified individuals has 
become a significant challenge. We will continue to invest in our employees through formal and 
informal training to address this issue.  
 
The understanding of the assessment process persists as a challenge. Our efforts have 
improved the understanding but work needs to be done to further improve the awareness of the 
process. With municipal elections scheduled in the fall of 2017, there will be many newly elected 
municipal officials who will need a good understanding of property assessment.  
 

OPPORTUNITIES 
 
As we noted last year, there was extensive media coverage of the public response to the 2016 
revaluation delivered in October 2015. The measurable result was an increase in the number of 
assessment appeals to 4426, which represents 2.2 percent of all assessments delivered by the 
Agency. Following the appeal reviews and hearings, the total taxable assessed value was reduced 
by less than one half of one percent (0.37 percent).  
 
For our budget 2017, the Agency has maintained its fee of $28 per assessment. While certain 
elements of our costs are increasing, the Agency has been managing its overall costs. The excess 
of revenue over expenses for the past year was $398,414, a significant recovery from last years’ 
deficit of $98,779. This presents an opportunity to continue to restrain our fees, while investing in 
technology to improve our efficiency.   
 
Government, in partnership with the Municipal Assessment Agency and Municipalities 
Newfoundland and Labrador, has completed its public consultation on the review of the 
Assessment Act, 2006. This review will address known operational issues associated with the 
timing of assessments, assessment criteria, implementation of the associated mil rate and special 
purpose properties. We look forward to any improvements to the process and the opportunity to 
provide a better service to the people of the province.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Statements of 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT  

AGENCY INC. 

 
Year ended March 31, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

13 

 

JOHN F. MORGAN 
 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

6 Lambe’s Lane 

St. John’s, NL   A1B 4E9 

Office: (709) 576-6776 

Fax: (709) 576-6777 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements for Municipal Assessment Agency Inc., which 

comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, and the statement of revenues, expenses and equity, 

and statement of changes in financial position for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management 

determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.  I conducted 

my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the presentation 

of the financial statements. 

 

I believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

Municipal Assessment Agency Inc. as at March 31, 2017, and its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards.  

  
 CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS      
St. John's, Newfoundland 

June 7, 2017

 



 

14 

 
 

2017 2016

CURRENT

Cash 2,019,319$    1,490,604$    

Accounts receivable (note 2) 93,818           158,141         

Prepaid expenses 151,454         163,792         

2,264,591      1,812,537      

Severance reserve fund (note 3) 716,324         866,438         

Capital assets (note 4) 1,124,884      1,224,531      

4,105,799$    3,903,506$    

CURRENT  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 217,576$       249,223$       

Accrued vacation pay (note 5) 292,351         326,073         

Deferred revenue 19,362           -                     

529,289         575,296         

Accrued severance pay (note 5) 716,324         866,438         

1,245,613      1,441,734      

CAPITAL

Authorized and issued

1 common share 1                    1                    

Equity from operations 2,860,185      2,461,771      

2,860,186      2,461,772      

4,105,799$    3,903,506$    

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)

On Behalf of the Board:

                                                  

                                                  

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC.
BALANCE SHEET 

As at March 31, 2017

ASSETS



 

15 

  

2017 2016

REVENUES

Assessment services 5,649,929$    5,622,866$    

Valuation revenue 108,749         46,303           

Interest revenue 16,344           17,024           

Municipal training 2,560             2,080             

5,777,582       5,688,273       

EXPENSES

Salaries 3,266,037       3,372,228       

Benefits 688,076          706,241          

Travel 317,451          372,243          

Information technology 276,088          263,306          

Postage and courier 165,488          163,304          

Premises and equipment lease 102,361          99,615            

Professional fees 84,625            141,188          

Repairs and maintenance 71,786            62,488            

Telephone 58,067            62,846            

Printing 54,876            66,336            

Office supplies 46,871            42,818            

Advertising and public relations 36,820            38,827            

Insurance 23,801            21,513            

Utilities 22,033           32,607            

Payroll processing 5,859              5,454              

Meeting and events 2,655              10,890            

Bank charges 2,205              2,772              

Exchange gain (270)               (11,091)          

5,224,829       5,453,585       

Excess of revenues over expenses before the following: 552,753          234,688          

Provision for severance and vacation pay (note 5) 41,589            185,301          

Amortization of capital assets 112,039          140,690          

Bad debt expense 711                 7,476              

Excess of expenses over revenues 398,414          (98,779)          

Equity from operations, beginning of year 2,461,771       2,560,550      

EQUITY FROM OPERATIONS, END OF YEAR 2,860,185$    2,461,771$    

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND EQUITY

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 



 

16 

  

2017 2016

OPERATING

Excess of revenues over expenses 398,414$       (98,779)$        

Items not affecting cash:

Amortization of capital assets 112,039          140,690          

Increase (decrease) in severance pay accrual (150,114)        77,167            

Increase (decrease) in vacation pay accrual (33,722)          41,315            

Net change in non-cash working capital balance 64,376            63,541            

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 390,993          223,934          

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of capital assets (12,392)          (23,400)          

Increase in cash position 378,601         200,534          

Cash position, beginning of year 2,357,042       2,156,508       

CASH POSITION, END OF YEAR 2,735,643$    2,357,042$    

Cash is representented by:

Operating cash 2,019,319$    1,490,604$    

Severance reserve fund 716,324         866,438         

2,735,643$    2,357,042$    

Commitments and contingencies (note 6)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017



 

17 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

General: 
 

The Municipal Assessment Agency Inc. (the “Agency”) was incorporated April 2, 1997, under the laws of the 

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador to carry out assessment services for various municipalities throughout the 

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador pursuant to the Assessment Act.  Prior to this date, these services were 

performed by the Department of Municipal Affairs and Environment, Government of Newfoundland and Labrador 

(the “Department”). 

 

The Agency has one common share with a par value of $1.00 issued to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and 

Environment, Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. 

 

The Agency is a crown corporation and, accordingly, is exempt from income taxes under Subsection 149(1)(d) of 

the Income Tax Act. 

 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies: 

 

The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared within the framework of Public Sector Accounting 

Standards which require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in these 

statements and related notes.  Any variations between these estimates and actual amounts are not expected to 

materially affect reported results.  The more significant accounting policies of the Agency are as follows: 

 

(a) Capital assets 

 

Capital assets purchased by the Agency are recorded at cost.  Amortization is recorded on a declining balance basis 

over the assets estimated useful lives at the following rates: 

 

Furniture and equipment 20% 

Computer hardware and software 30% 

Integrated assessment system 30% 

Buildings   4% 

 

(b) Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue for the provision of assessment and valuation services is recognized when the services are rendered. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

18 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

(c) Accrued severance pay 

 

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrued basis and is calculated based upon years of service and current salary 

levels.  The right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine years of continued service and accrues to 

a maximum of twenty years and, accordingly, no provision has been made in the accounts for employees with less 

than nine years of continued service.  The amount is payable when the employee ceases employment with the 

Agency.  The cash amount of the accrued severance pay is segregated into a severance reserve fund. 

 

(d) Redundancy pay 

 

Redundancy pay is recognized as a liability when it is probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the 

amount can be reasonably estimated. 

 

(e) Fair value of financial instruments 

 

The Agency has evaluated the fair values of its financial instruments based on the current interest rate environment, 

related market values and current pricing of financial instruments with comparable terms.  The carrying value of its 

financial instruments is considered to approximate fair value, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

The Agency considers any contract creating a financial asset, liability or equity instrument as a financial instrument, 

except in certain limited circumstances.  The Agency accounts for the following as financial instruments: 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Trade and other receivables  

 Due from (to) companies under common control  

 Bank indebtedness 

 Payables and accruals  

 Long-term debt 

 

A financial asset or liability is recognized when the Agency becomes party to contractual provisions of the 

instruments.  

 

Financial assets or liabilities obtained in arm’s length transactions are initially measured at their fair value.  In the 

case of a financial asset or liability not being subsequently measured at fair value, the initial fair value will be 

adjusted for financing fees and transaction costs that are directly attributable to its origination, acquisition, issuance 

or assumption.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies: 

 

Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured according to the following methods: 

 

  Financial instrument      Subsequent measurement  

  Cash and cash equivalents    Amortized cost  

  Trade and other receivables    Amortized cost 

  Due from (to) companies under common control  Amortized cost 

  Bank indebtedness      Amortized cost 

  Payables and accruals      Amortized cost 

  Long-term debt      Amortized cost 

 

The Agency removes financial liabilities, or portion of, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

 

(f) Currency risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. Some assets are exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations. As at March 31, 2017, 

cash balances of $175,257 ($162,369 in 2016) are shown in US dollars in the company’s account and converted into 

Canadian dollars as at that date for financial statement purposes.  

 

2. Accounts receivable: 

 
3. Severance reserve fund: 

 

The Agency has internally restricted funds for the accrued severance pay liability.  These funds are to be used to pay 

any accrued severance and not to be used in normal business operations.  The restricted funds are held in the 

Agency’s operating account that bears interest. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017 2016

Trade receivables 58,442$      47,639$      

HST recoverable 34,663        107,294      

Employee receivable 713             3,208          

93,818$      158,141$    



 

20 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

4. Capital assets: 

  
 

5. Severance and vacation pay: 

 

The provision for severance and vacation pay consists of the following: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2016

Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Value

Computer hardware and

    software 417,673$    403,913$    13,760$       14,597$      

Furniture and equipment 242,193      207,807      34,386         33,730        

Integrated assessment

    system 1,839,891   1,676,342   163,549       233,642      

Buildings 1,028,654   323,686      704,968       734,341      

Land 208,221      -                  208,221       208,221      

3,736,632$ 2,611,748$ 1,124,884$  1,224,531$ 

2017

Severance pay 2017 2016

Opening balance 866,438$    789,271$    

Severance paid out (185,258)      (39,158)        

Current year expense 35,144        116,325      

Closing balance 716,324$    866,438$    

Vacation pay 2017 2016

Opening balance 326,073$    284,758$    

Vacation paid out (40,167)        (27,661)        

Current year expense 6,445          68,976        

Closing balance 292,351$    326,073$    



 

21 

 

MUNICIPAL ASSESSMENT AGENCY INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017 

 

6. Commitments and contingencies: 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Corner Brook, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the lease is 5 

years, starting October 1, 2012 and ending on September 30, 2017, with the option to renew for a further term of up 

to 5 years.  The monthly rental fee is $4,174.  Future minimum lease payments total $25,044 and include the 

following payments over the next year: 2017 – 25,044. 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Clarenville, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the lease is 5 

years, starting May 1, 2013 and ending on April 30, 2018.  The monthly rental fee is $450.  Future minimum lease 

payments total $5,850 and include the following payments over the next two years: 2017 – $4,050, 2018 - $1,800. 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Grand Falls-Windsor, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the 

lease is 3 years, starting February 1, 2017 and ending on January 31, 2020.  The monthly rental fee is $841.  Future 

minimum lease payments total $28,594 and include the following payments over the next four years: 2017 - $7,569, 

2018 - $10,092, 2019 - $10,092, 2020 - $841. 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Deer Lake, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the lease is 3 

years, starting February 1, 2016 and ending on January 31, 2019.  The monthly rental fee is $425.  Future minimum 

lease payments total $9,350 and include the following payments over the next three years: 2017 - $3,825, 2018 - 

$5,100, 2019 - $425. 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Stephenville, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the lease is 3 

years, starting November 4, 2016 and ending on November 4, 2019.  The monthly rental fee is $391.  Future 

minimum lease payments total $12,512 and include the following payment over the next three years: 2017 - $3,519, 

2018 - $4,692, 2019 - $4,301. 

 

The Agency has a lease for office space in Carbonear, Newfoundland and Labrador.  The term of the lease is 3 

years, starting September 1, 2015 and ending on September 1, 2018.  The monthly rental fee is $850.  Future 

minimum lease payments total $14,450 and include the following payments over the next two years: 2017 - $7,650, 

2018 - $6,800. 

 

The Agency has prepared property valuations which are subject to litigation to which the Agency has been included 

as a third party defendant.  These claims could be considered to be in the normal course of the Agency’s activities.  

Neither the possible outcome nor the amount of possible settlement can be foreseen.  Therefore, no provision has 

been made in the financial statements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Municipal Assessment Agency Inc. 

Toll Free 1-877-777-2807 

www.maa.ca 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEMS/ 

NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tabled items  

Economic Devel.,

Marketing, 

& Comm. 
 

 

 

 

 



























































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tabled items  

Administration & 

Finance 
 

 

 

 

 



REGULAR ACCOUNTS:

TOTAL REGULAR ACCOUNTS: -$                           

CAPITAL ACCOUNTS:

Claim#1-Meadow 8/25/2017 Pyramid Construction Ltd. 57,721.94$               

Claim #2 - Portugal Cove Road Sidewalks

TOTAL CAPITAL ACCOUNTS: 57,721.94$               

GRAND TOTAL: 57,721.94$               

Accounts for Payment - October 2, 2017

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEMS/ 

NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 

 

 

 

 


	2017 04 18 PD Report - Tabled Correspondence.pdf
	Planning and Development Committee Report Agenda
	Planning and Development Committee Report




